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1. Under the section, “Composition of the Panel through 
Cascade” where the Commission describes the composition of the 
expert panels, we assume that each of the expert advisors for a 
specific panel under Lot1 and Lot2 respectively, will be from the 
one firm, and not a range of firms, unless separate firms are engaged 
for Lots 1 and 2?  

Q1: Could you confirm that this interpretation is correct? Could you 
also provide more detail as to the potential length of a work order, in 
order for us to evaluate the “time investment” required by our 
experts participating in a panel.? 

Reply to Q1: 

The Commission intends to have at its disposal up to 
5 expert advisors in Lot 1 and up to 5 expert advisors 
under Lot 2. Thus, the Commission will probably 
sign 10 framework contracts with ten different expert 
advisors. In each lot the expert advisors will be 
grouped in a cascading system, so when there is need, 
the Commission will always turn to the first expert 
advisor in the cascading system and only if there is a 
conflict of interest or the expert is not available the 
Commission will turn to the next expert in the 
cascade. For a specific assignment, the Commission 
may decide to set up a panel of experts. Such a panel 
will then consist of expert advisors, for example 2 or 
3 expert advisors out of the ten with which the 
Commission will have signed the framework 
contracts. The panel may consist of two expert 
advisors from Lot 1 and one expert advisor from Lot 
2. Thus in a panel different expert advisors – being 
these different companies or individual experts – will 
need to cooperate to accomplish a specific 
assignment. 

It is not possible to define the length of specific 
assignments beforehand. That will depend on the 
characteristics and requirements of each assignment. 
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Under the section, “Implementation of the Contract” where the 
Commission explains the concept of ‘conflict of interest’ we have 
the following questions.  

 

"A conflict of interest shall be considered existent in case: 

the contractor has been advising the financial institution 
involved in a particular assignment on matters related to asset 
management, trading, valuation or pricing within a period of two 
years before the signature of the specific contract " 

 

Q2: Does the word ‘contractor’ refer to the individual expert from 
the firm or to the firm as a whole?  

 

We note that in the case where the Commission would indeed imply 
that ‘the contractor’ is the entire firm rather than the individual 
expert, it would be very difficult for any major financial advisory 
firm to carry out these assignments without being in one way or 
another conflicted out for a specific work order. 

 

Based on our review of the Request for Tender we are planning to 
use the following approach: 

Identify and provide CVs of teams in multiple jurisdictions 
(ie. UK team, German team, Belgian team, US team, etc) 

 

Where a work order is for a UK bank and the UK senior 

Reply to Q2: 
In general the firm as a whole cannot be conflicted 
with a particular assignment. However the 
Commission would consider that in case the firm 
ensures that the conflicted experts are not involved in 
the assignment and all the necessary safeguards are in 
place in order to ensure no conflict of interest can 
possibly arise, the conflict of interest may be 
considered non existent.  

 

Reply to Q3: 

It is not possible to provide a general answer to the 
question, without detailed information on the specific 
implementation of the proposed approach. 
Nevertheless, it remains the contractor's 
responsibility to put in place all the necessary 
safeguards to ensure no conflict of interest also at 
individual level. 



expert can not afford to be conflicted out from working for that bank 
for the next 2 years, the senior expert from the German team would 
lead the UK team of junior and intermediate experts on the work 
order (as he/she would be unlikely to be required to work on that 
bank in the UK going forward).  In this regard, if we were to use our 
US broker dealer as an expert for any of the work orders, do you 
envisage that he would be conflicted out from performing work for 
any of the financial institutions going forward in relation to investor 
contact pertaining to the realisation of loan portfolios? 

 

This would ensure that we would be able to undertake the most 
number of work orders as possible and maximise the quality and 
consistency of the staff involved in each project team. It would also 
ensure that each project team would have the necessary local 
knowledge and language capabilities for the various jurisdictions. 

 

Q3: Please confirm that you are comfortable with this approach (at a 
high level). 
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Under the section, “Implementation of the Contract” the 
Commission explains: 

 
"Conflict of interest shall be considered existent in case the 
contractor has been advising the financial institution involved in a 
particular assignment on matters related to asset management, 
trading, valuation or pricing within..." 

 

Reply to Q4: 
 The conflict of interest exists when the "contractor 
has been advising the financial institution involved in 
a particular assignment on matters related to asset 
management, trading, valuation or pricing…", both if 
it was formally or informally engaged.  
 
 
 



Q4: Please confirm that the basis for whether advice has been given 
is first and foremost judged by whether the contractor was formally 
engaged by the financial institution of government? 

 

Q5: Please confirm that the advisory services need to be directly 
related to the items identified above, for example providing advice 
to a client on Human Resource management and Incentives 
indirectly impacts the way that Financial Institutions trade and 
manage assets. Another example would be tax related transfer 
pricing engagements which involve advising clients on how internal 
pricing should be determined and documented in order to comply 
with requirements of the tax law but does not actually impact the 
valuation that a Financial Institution ascribes an asset for the 
purposes of disposal or acquisition.  

 

We will of course have avoiding situations that may be perceived to 
impair our objectivity at the front of our mind, given that our firm as 
a whole will have likely provided advisory services in some capacity 
to most of the financial institutions and governments that will be 
subject to review by the commission we just want to ensure that 
only direct advisory assignments on asset management, trading, 
valuation and pricing for the classes of assets being reviewed will be 
considered as a "conflict". 

 

 
 
 
Reply to Q5: 

The advisory services need to be directly related to 
matters related to asset management, trading, 
valuation or pricing. 

For example advising of Human Resource 
management or on tax related transfer pricing, would 
not be considered conflicting.  
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Under the section, “Implementation of the Contract” where the 
Commission explains the concept of ‘conflict of interest’ we have 
the following questions.  

Reply to Q6: 
All the measures designed or implemented in order to 
provide relief to the financial institutions regarding 
the impaired assets. 



 

"or 

the contractor has been advising the Member State, 
concerned by the  assignment with regard to issues related to asset 
relief measures within a period of two years before the signature of 
the specific contract" 
 

Q6: Could the Commission expand on how broad a scope do asset 
relief measures cover? 
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Under the section, “Implementation of the Contract” where the 
Commission explains the concept of ‘conflict of interest’ we have 
the following questions.  

 

"or 

for other reasons the contractor is not sufficiently 
independent or is not free of  actual or potential conflict of interest 
as regards a particular assignment (e.g.  because it is working in 
parallel for the closest competitor of the bank in  question)." 

 

Q7: Please confirm that ‘working’ relates to advisory services for 
potential asset relief measures for the closest competitor of the bank 
in question? 

 

 

Reply to Q7: 
Please see reply to Q5. It needs to be ensured that 
there is not conflict of interest (also at individual 
level) as regards advising in matters related to asset 
management, trading, valuation or pricing (as 
indicated in replies to Q2 and Q3). 

 



 

Page 5 

 

Under the “Implementation of the Contract” section the 
Commission makes reference to "access to relevant information".  

 

Q8: Could the Commission explain what will be the source of the 
data/information and how will this be provided to the successful 
contractor?  

Q9: Will the contractor be able to access additional data/information 
requests from the Commission and/or the Financial 
Institution/Member State?  

Q10: Will this data and all documents related to the asset relief 
measures implemented by Member States be provided to the 
contractor in English? Or will these be in the official language of 
each respective member state under scrutiny? 

Reply to Q8: 
The Member State will provide the information, 
which will most probably be sourced from the 
beneficiary of the measure, its consultant or the 
consultant of the Member State concerned. 

Reply to Q9: 
The Contractor will have the possibility to access 
additional data/information stemming from 
Commission requests of information to the Member 
State, and other information in possession of the 
Commission, insofar as the Commission deems 
opportune to share this information with the 
Contractor. The Contractor will have the possibility 
to suggest to the Commission additional questions. 
However, it is for the Commission to decide which 
questions to ask to the Member State.  

Reply to Q10: 
It will depend on the working arrangements between 
the Member State, the Commission and the 
consultant. In most cases the documents will be 
provided in English. However, it is possible that 
documents will be submitted in any of the European 
Union's official languages. 
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Under the “Implementation of the Contract” section, the 
Commission states that,  

 

“After the completion of an assignment the expert will for two years 

Reply to Q11: 
See reply to Q6 

 

Reply to Q12: 



following the completion of the assignment be obliged to refrain 
from work for the institution(s) and the Member State concerned by 
the assignment in matters related to asset relief measures”. 

 

Q11: Could the Commission expand on how broad a scope do asset 
relief measures cover?   

Q12: Also as previously indicated, please confirm that this 
restriction applies to the expert as an individual(s) rather than the 
contractor as a firm? 

 

 

The above restriction applies to the experts involved 
in the completion of the assignment (please compare 
replies to Q2 and Q3).  
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Under the section “Volume of the Contract”, the Commission 
describes the evidence that is to be provided by the contractor in the 
form of amongst others,  

 

"a list of services, missions, engagements delivered in the past three 
years, including the name of the client (together with some reference 
names the Commission could contact if necessary)"  

 

Q13: For reasons pertaining to client confidentiality, would the 
Commission accept references and engagement descriptions that do 
not contain the name and contact details of the client? 

 

Reply to Q13: 
The Commission will consider the information 
provided in this respect as confidential, thus it would 
be advisable to disclose the names and contact details 
of the clients. If no disclosure is possible for reasons 
of client confidentiality, as much information as 
possible should be provided to allow the Commission 
to assess the relevance of the information submitted. 

The experience of the bidders will have a significant 
impact on the evaluation of the offers; lack of 
complete information may have an impact on the 
evaluation of the submitted offer. 
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Under the section “Award Criteria – Technical Evaluation”. 

 

Reply to Q14: 
The technical notes should describe the issue in a 
comprehensive way. It is for the bidder to decide 
about the length of the note. 



Q14: Could the Commission please provide more guidance on the 
expected length of the “technical notes” that are to be included in 
the proposal.  

 

 

General 

Q15: Does the Commission expect the contractor to possess and 
include legal expert profiles in order to deal with the judicial/legal 
aspects of asset relief measures? 

 

Reply to Q 15 

No 

Draft Contract 

 
 Q16: If a Contractor obtains a Bank Guarantee, how much will the 
Bank Guarantor be guaranteeing? 
A "pre financing amount" has been referred to. What amount does 
the Commission have in mind. 

 

Reply to Q 16 

A Bank Guarantee is foreseen in Art. II.4.1 of the 
draft Framework contract, related to Prefinancing.  

There is no pre-financing foreseen in Art. I.5 (special 
conditions) of the draft Framework  contract, which 
is overruling Art. II.4 (general conditions) of the 
contract.  

 
16 Under paragraph I.11.2.3 (Technical and Professional Capacity), the 

Commission requests that evidence of technical and professional 
capacity and reputation be provided.  This may include a list of 
previous engagements contact names for references.   
 
Q17:  Can the Commission confirm that this information will be 
kept strictly confidential? 

Reply to Q17: 
Yes 

Draft agreement 
I.11.2 
 

We note that if an assignment is undertaken, for a period of two 
years thereafter the expert is not permitted to undertake work for the 
relevant institution(s) or Member States in matters related to asset 
relief measures. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Q18:  Can the Commission confirm that references to “the expert” 
are to individual(s) substantially engaged on the relevant 
assignment. 
 
Q19:  In respect of “matters related to asset relief measures”, can the 
Commission confirm that this would only apply to matters where a 
serious and material conflict of interest would apply. 

Reply to Q18: 
Please see the reply to Q12 above. 
 
 
Reply to Q19: 
As explained previously (reply to Q6 published on 
the website), "asset relief measures" relate to all the 
measures designed or implemented in order to 
provide relief to the financial institutions regarding 
the impaired assets.  
 

Draft agreement 
II.11.2 
 

Q20:  Can the Commission confirm that the Contractor will only be 
liable under this article if the Contractor is in breach of its standard 
of care as set out in Art. II.1.1? 
 

Reply to Q20: 
As explained in Art. II.11.2 the Contractor shall have 
the sole responsibility for compliance with the tax 
laws which apply to him.  The Commission considers 
that all the tax laws applicable to the Contractor need 
to be complied with. 

 Q21:  Can the Commission confirm that the Contractor will not owe 
any duty of care to persons other than the Commission under this 
agreement and that the Contractor will be held harmless from any 
claims brought by such persons? 

Reply to Q21: 
The Commission cannot confirm so. Please see 
Article II.2 of the draft contract, e.g. Art. II.2.2. states 
that "the Contractor shall be liable for any loss or 
damage caused by himself in performance of the 
contract". 

Draft agreement 
II.10 

This provisions gives the Commission broad rights to publicise 
“data contained in or relating to the Contract.” 
 
Q22:  Can the Commission confirm that reports and other 
deliverables provided by the Contractor would be kept strictly 
confidential?  

Reply to Q22: 
No. To the contrary: 
Draft contract Art. II.10.1.: " The Contractor shall 
authorise the Commission to process, use, distribute 
and publish, for whatever purpose, by whatever 
means and on whatever medium, any data contained 
in or relating to the Contract, in particular the identity 
of the Contractor, the subject matter, the duration, the 



amount paid and the reports."  
The Commission assures that it treats all data 
concerning the contractor confidential (e.g. 
information on its economic situation or on technical 
specifications linked to its work).  
 

Draft agreement 
II.16 

Q23:  Can the Commission confirm that liquidated damages would 
not apply where a delay was caused by circumstances outside the 
Contractor’s control? 

Reply to Q23: 
Article II 16 explains that the Commission "may 
decide to impose liquidated damages" and the 
Contractor "may submit arguments against this 
decision".  In its decision concerning liquidated 
damages the Commission will take into account the 
circumstances of the delay. 
 

 Q24: We understand the Price to be supplied for Lot 1 shall include 
all costs and expenses incurred in the performance of duties under 
the task with the exception of travel and accommodation costs - and 
the draft Framework Contract outlines what/how much of such 
expenses may be recovered.  Please clarify for Lot 2 how we should 
judge the degree of travel and accommodation costs that should be 
included in the fee per expert person day.  It would be helpful to 
have some guidance on the expected split of time between work to 
be provided at our office and abroad, the destinations and degree of 
advance notice that will be provided (which influences cost of air 
travel etc.) or alternatively please confirm that a unit price without 
travel and accommodation costs may be provided as per Lot 1.  
 

Reply to Q24: 
The number of trips/duration necessary in the 
performance of the tasks cannot be estimated at this 
stage. The costs included in the fee calculation is 
entirely up to the tenderer. 
No proof of expenses others than for the number of 
days worked will be required. The Commission 
cannot accept a unit price that does not "…include all 
costs and all expenditure incurred directly and 
indirectly in performance of the tasks…" (Art. I.7 
tender specs)    
 

 Q25: Can the Commission outline the time frame for the review of 
the Tender, announcement of the panel composition, entry into 
Framework Contract, request for  first task etc. 

Reply to Q25: 
The Commission is expecting the contract to be 
awarded by end November. 
The composition of panels will be decided on an ad 



hoc basis for every assignment separately, depending 
on the workload, conflicts of interest and availability 
of expert advisors. 
The requests for tasks cannot be foreseen at this 
stage.  
 

 Q26: Would proof of economic and financial capacity for an 
individal of the Contractor Team be satisfied solely by evidence of 
Professional Risk Indemnity- refer Tender Specification. I.II.2.2. If 
so what would be the required Professional Risk Indemnity amount? 
 

Reply to Q26:  
First, it is not clear what is meant by "individual of 
the Contractor Team". If it is meant an individual 
being employed by a consortium member or 
subcontractor, not being a consortium member or 
subcontractor himself, he/she is not concerned by the 
requirements towards selection criteria. On the 
contrary, if a natural person (an individual) is a 
consortium member or subcontractor, in light of the 
technical specification (point I.10 last paragraph) his 
capacity should be considered.  

 
The amount of the professional risk indemnity should 
be related to the value of realistic estimate of a 
maximum number of specific contracts to be 
performed in one moment by the Contractor and in a 
reasonable proportion to the total budget of the 
contract. 
 
 

Page 12 On page 12 of the tender specifications, the Commission specifies 
that: "All information irrespective of its format (...), provided by 
the Commission and intermediate or final results elaborated by 
the Contractor on this basis thereof will be destroyed by the 
Contractor at the end of the contract period. Proof of 

 

 



destruction will be required".  
 
Q27: In this regard, would the European Commission "hold us 
harmless" for any direct or indirect claims made against the 
Contractor by the Commission or third parties after the end of the 
contracting period? If so, could the European Commission provide 
us with a document that would state this in clear legal terms? If the 
answer is negative, what type of guarantees can the Commission 
give the Contractor against any potential claims made in this 
respect? A full destruction of work related documents will leave the 
Contractor without any proof required were the Contractor to face 
any claims."  
 

 

 
Reply to Q27:  
With respect to point I.9 of the Tender 
specifications, the Commission likes to clarify that, 
before destruction of the file, the Contractor has 
the possiblity to send a copy of the complete file to 
the Commission for the sake of keeping a memory 
of the proceedings and preparatory work by the 
Contractor. 

 

 Regarding Annex I Paragraph I.2.3. 1) Verification conflict of 
interest: You answered already the question that the contractor as a 
company must not be free of conflict of interest, but the expert 
working on the assignment. In addition the company has to insure 
that no conflict of interest may arise (Q2 in Question and Answers 
on your website). In Paragraph I.9 Confidentiality aned Conflict of 
Interest it is written:  

 
“In addition, for two years after the completion of a specific 
assignment, the Contractor should abstain from working for the 
Member State or the institution concerned by this assignment in 
matters related to asset relief measures” 

 
Q28: Is the interpretation right that your answer Q2 in Questions 
and Answers on your website applies for this paragraph, too? Or 
does it mean that the company has to restrain from business related 
to asset relief measures?   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reply to Q28: 
Yes. Reply to Question 2 would apply by analogy here as 
well  
 



 
 Regarding paragraph I.2.3. 2) Request for services:  

 
Q29: Are all expert advisers who are part of the framework contract 
in a specific Lot getting a request for new assignments? If not, what 
will be the procedure? 
 

Reply to Q29: 
No, it is a cascading system, described in the tender 
specification: 
p. 17: 
The contracts will be awarded based on the best value 
for money and the selected tenders will be evaluated 
according to the following criteria and points scored 
for each criterion. The total number of points is one 
hundred. The marks will decide on the order of 
experts in the cascade.  Once the successful tenders 
have been evaluated, the Commission will draw up a 
list in descending order comprising a maximum of 
five contractors, in conformity with the criteria and 
the procedure set out in paragraph I.12, in order to 
determine the order in which contractors will be 
called when an order is to be placed." 
  
and then page 23: 
"For each assignment, the Commission will contact 
the first contractor on the list of the lot or lots 
required. Should the first contractor be unavailable or 
have a conflict of interest, it will contact the second 
contractor on the list and so on. When two 
expert advisors are required from the same lot, it will 
contact the two first, should any of them be 
unavailable or have a conflict of interest it will 
contact the next on the list. 

 Q30: Would you confirm that, in order to make successful application, the 
tender must be postmarked by 24.8.2009? What is the latest time that that 

Reply to Q30: 
In the invitation to tender it reads that "tenderers may 



postmark may have?  
 

choose to submit tenders: 
either by post or by courier not later than 18/08/2009 
(corrected to 24/08/2009), in which case the call for 
the tenders shall specify that the evidence shall be 
constituted by the date of despatch, the postmark or 
the date of the deposit slip…".  
 
If the tender file is submitted by mail, the invitation 
does not refer to a specific time, just the date (of 
despatch). 
 

 Q31: Is it possible to get an extension to the deadline for submission of 
24.8.2009, (and if so, how)?  
 

Reply to Q31: 
An extension of the deadline is not possible. 
 

 

 

 

 


